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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Good morning,

          3  everybody. Not a good Monday morning, if you're a

          4  Jets' fan like me. We were definitely robbed. But my

          5  name is Council Member Erik Martin Dilan. I'm the

          6  Chair of the Housing and Buildings Committee, and

          7  I'd like to thank everybody for attending today's

          8  hearing.

          9                 I'd like to introduce the members who

         10  are present at this time. To the far left we have

         11  Council Member Maria Baez. To the far right, Council

         12  Member Lew Fidler. Right next to him, Council Member

         13  Rosie Mendez, Council Member Tony Avella, who was

         14  the sponsor of two measures before us today.

         15                 The Committee will hear testimony

         16  from the Department of Buildings and others on two

         17  bills dealing with demolition and two bills dealing

         18  with stop work orders. The first is proposed Intro.

         19  3-A, sponsored by Council Member Tony Avella. The

         20  second is proposed Intro. 43-A, also by Council

         21  Member Avella.

         22                 The third is proposed Intro. 132-A by

         23  Council Member Domenic Recchia, Jr., and the last is

         24  proposed Intro. 216-A by Council Member Vincent

         25  Gentile.
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          2                 Intros 3 and 132, in their original

          3  form, had a hearing prior to this Committee on May

          4  16th of 2006. The Council is greatly concerned about

          5  the performance of individuals and businesses

          6  directly engaged in demolition work throughout this

          7  City.

          8                 Just very briefly, proposed Intro.

          9  3-A would provide for additional finds and penalties

         10  for conducting demolition work without a permit and

         11  now allow the Department of Buildings to, I'm pretty

         12  sure they'll get into it in more detail in their

         13  testimony.

         14                 Proposed Intro. 43-A would clarify

         15  and provide that the Police Department -- basically

         16  clarifies the duties of the NYPD while enforcing

         17  stop work orders. Intro. 132-A would create

         18  additional criminal and civil penalties for anyone

         19  found guilty having conducted demolition work

         20  without a permit on one- and two-family units, and

         21  proposed would increase fines and existing penalties

         22  for violations of stop work orders and -- for stop

         23  work orders.

         24                 We will begin with testimonies from

         25  representatives of the Department of Buildings, but
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          2  before we turn it over to them, I'm going to allow

          3  Council Member Tony Avella, who is the sponsor of

          4  half the items on the agenda today to make a brief

          5  opening statement.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair. I'll just quickly have a few comments, in

          8  addition to those that you've already made.

          9                 Intro. 3-A would basically increase

         10  the penalties for demolition without a permit by

         11  making such violations a misdemeanor as opposed to a

         12  simple violation which it is today and by increasing

         13  the penalty to $5,000.

         14                 Intro. 43-A, which is enforcement of

         15  stop work orders, would clarify the ability of the

         16  Commissioner to request the assistance of the Police

         17  Department to assist in the enforcement of stop work

         18  orders including, and I think this is very

         19  important, the arrest of persons in violation and

         20  the seizure of equipment being used in violating a

         21  stop work order.

         22                 The bill would also create a

         23  notification system on the Department's website,

         24  containing a list of addresses by zip code, and then

         25  by community board district and Council district
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          2  where a stop work order has been given, and the date

          3  given, as well as a list of addresses where a stop

          4  work order has been rescinded and the date it was

          5  rescinded.

          6                 In addition, when stop work orders

          7  are rescinded, they must be in writing, and such

          8  rescissions must be immediately posted on the

          9  Department website.

         10                 I think I know I can speak for many

         11  of my colleagues, if not all my colleagues of the

         12  need to increase the enforcement powers of the

         13  Department of Buildings, especially as it related to

         14  demolition without a permit and violation of stop

         15  work orders.

         16                 I recently had a situation in my own

         17  district where a developer violated three stop work

         18  orders in rapid secession. This has really got to

         19  stop. We can't allow it to be the Wild Wild West out

         20  in the City, and I know there's been discussions

         21  back and forth with the Department of Buildings and

         22  the Administration and the Council with these two

         23  bills, and we continue to have those discussions.

         24                 The only thing I would ask, Mr.

         25  Chair, and the representative of the Department of
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          2  Buildings and the Administration, that we sort of

          3  conclude these discussions, get to the bottom of

          4  this issue and pass this legislation out as quickly

          5  as possible.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

          8  Member Avella, and I certainly agree with that

          9  statement you make.

         10                 So, I guess without further ado, we

         11  will turn it over to the Department of Buildings.

         12  With us to testify is a Mr. Stephen Kramer. Welcome.

         13  The General Counsel for the Department of Buildings.

         14  And I know I just gave you a nice introduction, but

         15  if you could start by just introducing yourself for

         16  the record, and then you can get right into your

         17  testimony.

         18                 MR. KRAMER: Good morning, Chairman

         19  Dilan, and members of the Housing and Buildings

         20  Committee.

         21                 My name is Stephen Kramer, and I'm

         22  Senior Counsel to the Commissioner for the

         23  Department of Buildings. I am appearing before you

         24  today to testify concerning Intros 3-A, 43-A, 132-A

         25  and 216-A and I would just like to start by thanking
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          2  the Chair and the Committee for allowing the

          3  Department the opportunity to testify on these

          4  bills.

          5                 At the outset I want to emphasize

          6  that while the Department does have some technical

          7  concerns with these bills, we look forward to

          8  resolving these with the Council and the

          9  Administration strongly supports the intent of these

         10  bills to strengthen the Department of Building's

         11  enforcement tools and increase the penalties on

         12  those who flaunt the requirements of the Building

         13  Code.

         14                 The Department's mission is to

         15  facilitate a safe and compliant development.

         16  Consequences must be imposed on developers and

         17  contractors who flaunt the requirements of the law.

         18  Increasing fines and making these fines stick will

         19  help get the message out that the Department will

         20  not tolerate illegal or unsafe construction

         21  practices.

         22                 Allow me to begin with the two bills

         23  I previously testified, I think it was last May,

         24  regarding demolition. Turning first to Intro. 3-A.

         25  The bill as currently written would establish a
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          2  penalty of no more than $5,000 for being found

          3  guilty of performing demolition work without a

          4  permit. The bill also allows for the violator to be

          5  subject to a civil penalty of not more than $5,000,

          6  or by imprisonment not to exceed six months or both.

          7  That was the misdemeanor provision that Councilman

          8  Avella referred to.

          9                 We, at the Department of Buildings,

         10  agree that demolition work without a permit is a

         11  serious violation that has possible serious personal

         12  safety consequences, as well as consequences for

         13  neighboring property owners.

         14                 The existing fine structure for these

         15  types of violations in both the Criminal Courts and

         16  the Environmental Control Board does not, in our

         17  view, allow the judge or even require the judge to

         18  impose fines of serious consequences for this type

         19  of behavior.

         20                 Therefore, we recommend that the bill

         21  establish a minimum fine of no less than $5,000, and

         22  a maximum of 10,000 for both Criminal Court and

         23  civil penalties of ECB.

         24                 We believe a specified minimum fine

         25  of such high monetary value will be a strong
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          2  deterrent to those contemplating violation of the

          3  Building Code.

          4                 Moving along to Intro. 132-A. Once

          5  again, we agree with the Council that any demolition

          6  work done without the required permit should be

          7  subject to stiff penalties. In this instance, Intro.

          8  132-A establishes a penalty for anyone convicted of

          9  conducting demolition work without a permit on one-

         10  or two-family homes, of a fine not to exceed

         11  $10,000, or by imprisonment not to exceed six months

         12  or both.

         13                 As with the previous bill, we would

         14  recommend amending it to incorporate a similar

         15  penalty range of no less than $5,000 and no more

         16  than $10,000, both the criminal and civil penalties.

         17                 I will now proceed to the remaining

         18  two bills, those of which pertain to the enforcement

         19  of stop work orders.

         20                 Intro. 43-A amends Section 26-118 of

         21  the Building Code to explicitly include arrests of

         22  persons engaged in the violation of a stop work

         23  order and possible seizure of the equipment being

         24  used to violate the order.

         25                 We would note that this authority
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          2  already exists within the context of the current

          3  law, and that the Police Department does assist the

          4  Department of Buildings in our enforcement efforts

          5  as requested.

          6                 Additionally, the bill contemplates

          7  posting on the Department's website of all stop work

          8  orders issued and rescinded, disaggregating them by

          9  zip code, community board and Councilmanic district.

         10                 The bill also mandates that the

         11  Department also immediately post an issuance of a

         12  recision of a stop work order on the website; and,

         13  lastly, the legislation mandates that no rescision

         14  of a stop work order shall be valid unless it's made

         15  in writing.

         16                 At the outset of our proposed

         17  recommendations for this piece of legislation, we

         18  would like to inform the Council that we have

         19  already initiated conversations with the Sheriff's

         20  office of the Department of Finance, with the hope

         21  that they could also be included as providing

         22  potential assistance in the enforcement of the

         23  Department of Buildings stop work orders.

         24                 Though the conversations have just

         25  begun, the Sheriff's office has been very receptive
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          2  to the idea, the Sheriffs, of course are peace

          3  officers under the law, and have the arrest powers,

          4  and that they could assist us in our Department's

          5  stop work order or arrest when that's appropriate.

          6                 Continuing with our recommendations,

          7  with regard to disaggregating the information

          8  requested by Council district and zip code, we

          9  regret to inform the Committee that this function is

         10  not currently available or present information

         11  technology.

         12                 The information requested does exist

         13  and can be provided in a more timely matter, if it

         14  is done consistent with the Department's current

         15  system of sorting by address, block and lot and

         16  community board, but it simply does not have the

         17  function to use or disaggregate by zip codes or

         18  Council districts in the database.

         19                 We are exploring what resources would

         20  be necessary to add zip codes to the files and we do

         21  think that that would be possible, but we don't know

         22  yet the time frame or, frankly, the cost of

         23  consultants to do that. As you know, we've been

         24  working on improving the BIS system, and we do think

         25  that's a good idea to do that.
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          2                 Also, we are not able to guarantee

          3  that the issuance and rescission information will be

          4  immediately posted to the website, but we will do it

          5  operationally as fast as possible.

          6                 The process by which stop work orders

          7  are issued is one that involves every inspectorial

          8  unit in the Department, and that includes the

          9  construction units of every borough, our Special

         10  Projects Inspection Team, our Building Enforcement

         11  Safety Team, which focuses on residential

         12  properties, the Elevator Division, the Boiler

         13  Division, the Plumbing Division, the Electrical

         14  Division, et cetera. Inspectors from each unit call

         15  in to their chiefs to request permission to post a

         16  stop work order under our present procedures.

         17                 Once that approval is given over the

         18  telephone, the inspector then calls a clerk who has

         19  been instructed to give them the same information to

         20  be posted into BIS.

         21                 Please keep in mind that this clerk,

         22  though, is responsible for data entry for the stop

         23  work orders along with many other aspects of data

         24  entry, and therefore, we cannot guarantee the

         25  immediate entry of this data.

                                                            14

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 Our ordinary course of action allows

          3  for running a list and posting on the website of all

          4  the stop work orders issued once a week. So, if you

          5  look on there, there is a list of statistics that

          6  are given and they're posted either weekly or

          7  monthly or yearly at the choice of the person doing

          8  the search.

          9                 Therefore, we recommend the

         10  Department be given 48 hours in order to guarantee

         11  the information as accurately posted.

         12                 At the last hearing regarding

         13  demolition bills, we mentioned to the Committee that

         14  the Department has been embarking on a new

         15  initiative regarding stop work orders. When a stop

         16  work order is issued, a red flag now goes up on the

         17  property profile page, signaling that no work should

         18  be done at this property unless expressly stated in

         19  the stop work order.

         20                 The red stop work order flag remains

         21  on the website until the complaint is corrected.

         22  Otherwise, when there is no flag on the property,

         23  and we know either that one did not exist or if

         24  there is a familiar property, the stop work order

         25  has been rescinded.
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          2                 Lastly, we recommend that higher

          3  penalties for initial and subsequent violations

          4  should replace the daily penalty provisions. An

          5  initial penalty of $2,000, followed by $5,000 for a

          6  second violation, and $10,000 for a third and all

          7  subsequent violations, is a much more effective tool

          8  in penalizing those who violate stop work orders.

          9  This way they will know with certainty precisely

         10  what the consequences will be, rather than perhaps

         11  going into a judge and making a plea that they

         12  should be given a much lower, more minimum fine.

         13                 Since violations can only be issued

         14  and penalties imposed if the violation is witnessed

         15  by an inspector, we cannot assume that a property

         16  owner or contractor is not complying with the stop

         17  work order, if an inspector does not see it in

         18  action. A property owner, of course, can take weeks

         19  or months to revise plans and get them approved, and

         20  we cannot legally assume merely because plans are

         21  not approved that they are non-compliant the whole

         22  period of time a stop work order was being violated.

         23                 Therefore, we believe that higher

         24  penalties will be a deterrent to those who blatantly

         25  flaunt stop work orders, as well as still be fair to
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          2  the property owner who is compliant with the order.

          3                 Additionally, we recommend that the

          4  penalties be paid to the Department or to ECB.

          5                 Lastly, Intro. 216-A increases the

          6  penalties for violation of a stop work order from

          7  $500 a day to $2,000 a day, and for work done

          8  without the required permit from ten times the

          9  amount of the permit fee to 20 times the amount of

         10  the permit fee.

         11                 Additionally, the bill contemplates

         12  increasing the civil penalty for one- and two-family

         13  dwellings that have been found to have done work

         14  without a permit from two times the permit fee to

         15  four times the permit fee, with a minimum of $500.

         16                 While the Department generally

         17  supports the increased penalties, we again

         18  recommend, as we did before, that the penalty

         19  provisions be amended to reflect a large initial

         20  penalty and even larger penalties for subsequent

         21  violations, as we cannot issue daily penalties for

         22  failure to comply with the stop work order.

         23                 Lastly, we propose that a range be

         24  set for a violation of the stop work order as

         25  opposed to just a maximum fine of no more than
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          2  $15,000. We recommend a fine of no less than $2,000

          3  and no more than $15,000, thus ensuring that an

          4  adequate penalty is paid for work done in violation

          5  of a stop work order.

          6                 In conclusion, we look forward to

          7  working with the City Council to increase the

          8  Department's reach in enforcing its rules and

          9  regulations, so that New York City and its residents

         10  will continue to be a great place to live, work and

         11  build.

         12                 Thank you, and I'll be happy to

         13  answer any questions.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. I'm

         15  going to open with a few brief questions. I see two

         16  of my colleagues already have, are already in queue

         17  for questioning. Just very briefly, just for just

         18  general information purposes, and for me just to get

         19  a better understanding of things, how many stop work

         20  orders were issued, say, in the last fiscal year?

         21  And I would say, how many instances does the

         22  Department have on record Citywide for demolition

         23  being done without a permit?

         24                 MR. KRAMER: I have with me the

         25  figures on the number of stop work orders issued.
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          2                 In Fiscal Year '06, that's ending on

          3  June 30th, '06, we issued $5,800 stop work orders.

          4  And for the first quarter from July 1st, '06 through

          5  September, we had issued 1,777 stop work orders.

          6                 I do not have the figures for

          7  demolitions without a permit. I know that in Fiscal

          8  '06, we issued 3,670 demolition permits but I don't

          9  have the number of demolition without permits. But I

         10  can look and I'll be glad to provide that for you,

         11  whatever information we can get from BIS.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay. We would

         13  certainly, certainly appreciate that.

         14                 Just from a general sense, I guess

         15  I'm pleased to see that it looks like there can be

         16  some resolution on these measures. I think that

         17  conceptually both the Administration and the Council

         18  is in the same place on most of the items. It looks

         19  like there's a few technical details that I'm sure

         20  my colleague may have some questions on and I'll

         21  save them for him.

         22                 Just briefly, I noticed in one of the

         23  bills, I believe it was Intro. 43-A, just in

         24  listening to your testimony, I thought it was a good

         25  idea that you are working with the Sheriff's
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          2  Department to get them involved with enforcement of

          3  stop work orders. How did this come about? Is this

          4  something that's --

          5                 MR. KRAMER: It cam about essentially

          6  from the testimony that we had I think last May with

          7  an interchange I think between Council Member Avella

          8  and the Police Department. And while the Police

          9  Department does assist us when we call them to come

         10  over, you know, and there's flagrant violation, and

         11  our inspectors are not carrying guns and generally

         12  are not peace officers, although some of them are,

         13  but they're really not in the position to make

         14  arrests.

         15                 So, we reached out and spoke to the

         16  Commissioner of Finance, who oversees the Sheriffs,

         17  and we've gotten very good feedback. The Sheriffs

         18  have indicated they would be willing to go with our

         19  inspectors and where there is a flagrant violation,

         20  an inspector can specifically, you know, say, yes,

         21  we have a stop work order and it's being violated,

         22  because sometimes these are very technical issues on

         23  -- you may have a building, a large building, in

         24  particular, where some of the work is permitted and

         25  other of the work is not. And no police officer is
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          2  going to have the specialized knowledge on his own

          3  without assistance from us. So the Sheriff's office

          4  said they would be willing to discuss this issue of

          5  assigning some sheriffs to come with the inspectors,

          6  and if we can work out the logistics of it, and I'm

          7  pretty optimistic that we can do that.

          8                 And I think it would be good to have

          9  it in the bill. You know, perhaps even if it doesn't

         10  happen this year, although I think it will, I'm an

         11  optimist by nature, and I think it would be good to

         12  have the authority there so that if in the future it

         13  takes six months or a year to work out, the

         14  authority will be there.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, and can you

         16  use them, or do you use them for other measures

         17  within the existing --

         18                 MR. KRAMER: Currently we have not

         19  used the Sheriff's Department, because under the

         20  Charter, I don't think it's part of their duties to

         21  assist the Commissioner of Buildings and what this

         22  will do is provide some legal authority for that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, and I

         24  noticed that since the Sheriffs came up that there

         25  is no mention of City marshals. Is there any opinion
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          2  on that? Or is there any way that they can assist

          3  also in enforcement?

          4                 MR. KRAMER: We can look into that.

          5  You know, I'm not familiar with what their duties

          6  are.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: That's an idea,

          8  but I'll also defer to the bill's sponsor on that.

          9                 Just I want to comment briefly,

         10  staying with Intro. 43. I think that the Department

         11  should do whatever necessary to get zip codes to be

         12  included in the posting.

         13                 I'm sure Council Member Avella has

         14  some feelings on some other notification parts but I

         15  won't steal his thunder. I will allow him to do

         16  that.

         17                 I guess just for my information,

         18  what's the, now moving to Intro. 216, what's the

         19  current permit fee, I guess, for a stop work order?

         20                 MR. KRAMER: The current penalty?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Penalty. Penalty.

         22  Penalty, sorry. I wrote permit fee, I meant penalty.

         23                 Well, generally the penalties range

         24  up to $5,000 for work without a permit, which is

         25  usually the most common violation that underlies a
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          2  stop work order. The penalty, for the first offense

          3  the penalty is $500, and the maximum penalty is

          4  $2,500, but would only be issued if there were a

          5  default. So, 500 is far more common and there's a

          6  mitigation of 250.

          7                 For demolition work without a permit,

          8  it's somewhat higher, the penalty, which is provided

          9  under the Environmental Control Board's jurisdiction

         10  was $1,500 with a mitigated penalty of 750, and

         11  similarly a default penalty of 2,500. Both of those

         12  penalties on a second defense is $10,000 for a

         13  default, but, again, if you show up, it will only be

         14  either 1,250 or for demolition without a permit

         15  3,750. So, what we're proposing doing, really I

         16  think in the spirit of these bills, is to set a

         17  higher minimum so that those minimums would then go

         18  up to $5,000 and $10,000 for a second offense.

         19                 Okay, and just staying with Intro.

         20  216 for a moment, you touched on some of the

         21  increased penalty measures in the law, but I guess

         22  there's several different I guess penalty triggers

         23  in the legislation. I guess can you summarize a bit

         24  on kind of how all these penalty triggers fit into

         25  the legislation?
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          2                 I know that you stated in your

          3  testimony it increases penalties for non-compliance

          4  from 500 to 2,000 for each day of non-compliance?

          5  That one was pretty simple.

          6                 Then it gets into increases in civil

          7  penalties and permanent penalty factors, I guess.

          8  Could you just basically summarize that?

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Yes. Under the existing

         10  Building Code there are two different types of

         11  penalties which a contractor would face, of course

         12  he may pass these on to the property owner, but

         13  they're imposed, actually usually imposed on the

         14  property owner but the contractor often feels the

         15  pinch as well.

         16                 First, there is either a -- there is

         17  a penalty that is a violation that's normally issued

         18  returnable to the Environmental Control Board, and

         19  that is the $5,000, $2,500 penalty that we just

         20  discussed.

         21                 Then in addition to that, the

         22  existing Administrative Building Code has a

         23  provision in it that for work without a permit, that

         24  if you've done it, the Council put in a provision a

         25  number of years ago that you'll pay an additional
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          2  penalty to the Department, before the Department

          3  will issue you a permit of either four times the

          4  case of residential properties, or ten times in the

          5  case of other properties of the amount of the

          6  permit, and that could well be $10,000 and sometimes

          7  even higher, but 10,000 would not be an unreasonable

          8  typical amount.

          9                 Those are very high fees, penalties,

         10  and I think that the one on the residential

         11  properties, because the residential permit fees are

         12  relatively low, you've suggested raising them and I

         13  think we concur to suggest be raised to four times

         14  the permit fee up from the existing two times the

         15  permit fee, but the other provision which applies to

         16  all other properties and will apply to non-profits

         17  and, you know, larger homes as well as office

         18  buildings or hospitals is currently ten times the

         19  permit fee, and because those permit fees are

         20  already much higher, we think that keeping that at

         21  ten is more appropriate, and while lifting the

         22  minimum fee, the minimum penalty payable at ECB to

         23  $5,000 for the first offense and $10,000 for the

         24  second.

         25                 Did I make that clear, because in
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          2  other words, these are two parallel --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Actually, you made

          4  it very clear and it's a pleasure for once to get an

          5  answer to a complicated question for me without

          6  having all that detail. I think you answered it

          7  directly the way I expected it, so I'm pleased with

          8  the answer.

          9                 But just briefly on 3A, before I turn

         10  it over to Council Member Fidler, I guess there is

         11  some difference in terms of the amount of fines. I

         12  won't ask you to answer the question. I would

         13  imagine that the bill sponsor and the Council will

         14  work that out, but I think we are calling for a max

         15  fine of 5,000 and I guess the Department feels that

         16  it should be higher, so I just want that noted. You

         17  don't have to answer it.

         18                 I'll just wait for input from the

         19  bill sponsor and the Counsel to the Committee.

         20                 Council Member Fidler, followed by

         21  Avella.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 First, I just want to by way of

         25  comment say I absolutely enthusiastically applaud
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          2  the testimony of the Buildings Department seeking to

          3  make the penalties higher than those that are called

          4  for in this bill, and I suspect, I'm a co-sponsor of

          5  all four of these and I suspect that the prime

          6  sponsors would have agreed with that, but just

          7  didn't have the balls to write in the original

          8  legislation how high the fines should go, but I

          9  don't think you could make these fines go high

         10  enough, and I think that the fact that you have four

         11  pieces of legislation on these topics here now

         12  reflect how serious a problem this has become in our

         13  communities. Demolition work without permits,

         14  certainly the willful flouting of stop work orders

         15  in our communities has become outrageous. And, so,

         16  I'm very please to hear that the Buildings

         17  Department and the Council is on the same page, in

         18  terms of increasing these fines.

         19                 My question, out of my own ignorance

         20  is, the fines are assessed against whom, the owner,

         21  the contractor or the developer?

         22                 MR. KRAMER: Standard practice is for

         23  in general Environmental Control Board violations

         24  are generally issued against the property owner who

         25  then it's a civil matter for the property owner to
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          2  determine whether or not the contractor who

          3  violated, if it was the contractor's fault and was

          4  doing it without permission, to go and collect that

          5  back from the contractor.

          6                 However, when, for example, there is

          7  work by unlicensed contractors, or we have a

          8  contractor who is flaunting, for example, a stop

          9  work order, we will write, the inspectors are

         10  instructed to write those against the contractor

         11  himself who is violating the law. And particularly

         12  for Criminal Court summonses we would go after the,

         13  let's say an unlicensed contractor and not the

         14  building owner, because our goal there is to stop

         15  the contractor from engaging in illegal behavior.

         16                 So, there is potential liability

         17  against several different parties and essentially

         18  it's a matter of discussion between the inspectors

         19  and our enforcement unit.

         20                 What we've done in each borough in

         21  the last year is we have assigned a specialized

         22  lawyer in what we call the Buildings Enforcement

         23  Unit, the BEU is our acronym, and they work with the

         24  inspectors on developing enforcement strategies and

         25  decide who we should be writing the violation to and
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          2  whether or not we should use the Criminal Courts,

          3  which is a much more cumbersome and expensive

          4  process, both from the Court's point of view and

          5  from our point of view, but it's sometimes what you

          6  have to do.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I think, you

          8  know, sometimes there are multiple levels of

          9  culpability, and I think perhaps these fines should

         10  be levied against all three, depending on the

         11  circumstance and let the judge sort it out.

         12                 You know, we also have, particularly

         13  in neighborhoods where rezoning is being

         14  contemplating, people violating stop work orders to

         15  pour foundations, and that's frequently the

         16  developer who is encouraging that, urging the

         17  contractor to pour a foundation in violation of a

         18  stop work order.

         19                 So, does the Buildings Department yet

         20  license developers? Do they have a database for

         21  developers?

         22                 MR. KRAMER: No. Currently, not only

         23  do we not license developers, which essentially can

         24  be anyone from just a single-family homeowner to a

         25  large corporation, but perhaps more importantly we
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          2  don't license general contractors.

          3                 And we have been working with Council

          4  Member Oddo on a general contractor registration

          5  bill, and I'm hopeful that that will move this year,

          6  because that would actually give us a handle on the

          7  worst perpetrators of these violations, and you get

          8  a contractor who violates the stop work order, you

          9  yank his license, it's going to be a real

         10  disincentive. Some contractors will just take the

         11  fines as a cost of doing business.

         12                 Pulling the license that is something

         13  that could really help us in our enforcement tools.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I would first

         15  commend you to expand the contractors licensing and

         16  database to developers and to the principles.

         17  Because as we know development companies come and go

         18  by project. And I would also point out to you that

         19  the conversation that you refer to with Council

         20  Member Oddo began almost five years ago. I know I

         21  participated, as well as did Council Member Clarke.

         22  And, you know, we had a promise with Commissioner

         23  Lancaster at that time that this was going to happen

         24  and it was going to happen in short order and that

         25  was why legislation wasn't necessary in the Year
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          2  2002.

          3                 So, I would urge you to move that

          4  forward. And in the same spirit, we seem to be on

          5  the same page on this legislation, and I know that

          6  it's been six or seven months that the technical

          7  provisions have been bandied back and forth in the

          8  Council and the Administration.

          9                 There is a very, very large

         10  groundswell of urgency and support for something to

         11  be done about stop work orders in my district, and I

         12  would ask again that Department of Buildings put

         13  this on the front burner so that we can come to an

         14  understanding about the best way to do something

         15  that we clearly both intend, which is to give some

         16  teeth to the Buildings Department and some umph to

         17  the penalties that can be imposed to people who

         18  violate these stop work orders and do demolition

         19  work without a permit, and that it be done in short

         20  order.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         23  Member Fidler.

         24                 Before we get to Council Member

         25  Avella, I just want to acknowledge some of my
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          2  colleagues who have showed up.

          3                 We've been joined by Council Member

          4  Recchia, who is the sponsor of 132-A on today's

          5  agenda. We've been joined by Council Member Jimmy

          6  Oddo, as well as Council Member Joel Rivera, and

          7  Council Member Vincent Gentile, who is the author of

          8  Intro. 216-A.

          9                 Council Member Avella.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Just a couple of quick comments.

         13  First of all, I appreciate your testimony today, and

         14  we're obviously very close on these bills, and as I

         15  mentioned in my opening comment, the faster we can

         16  conclude these minor differences, and get these

         17  bills enacted into law, will be a great benefit to

         18  the citizens of the City, because as Council Member

         19  Fidler mentioned, construction is just out of

         20  control in this City, unfortunately.

         21                 In reference to Intro. 3-A, I already

         22  was aware of your comments about increasing the fine

         23  to no less than five into a maximum of 10,000. I

         24  certainly support that. I think we were actually

         25  suspecting that, in my opinion, in the Intro today,
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          2  but we will certainly put that in the new version.

          3                 In reference to Intro. 43-A, a couple

          4  of points. And I certainly appreciate the suggestion

          5  about the Sheriff's Office. I think that was a good

          6  idea, and I also support the suggestion of the

          7  Chair, in terms of the Marshall's Office. The more

          8  enforcement powers that you have to call upon, the

          9  better.

         10                 The only thing I would add in terms

         11  of the Police Department assisting the Department of

         12  Buildings, and that's why I think this bill is very

         13  important, continues to be an item of contention.

         14                 You heard me reference the situation

         15  in my district where a developer had violated three

         16  stop work orders. When they violated the second stop

         17  work order, I had the Department of Buildings on

         18  site with the Police Department, and the Police

         19  Department refused, literally refused to take any

         20  action. And I hate to tell you this but their quote

         21  to me was when I asked them, well, what are you

         22  doing here then, I mean I asked you to come out and

         23  help? We are here to make sure that the Department

         24  of Buildings doesn't get beat up.

         25                 Now, of course, we don't want the
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          2  agents of Department of Buildings or the inspectors

          3  to get beat up, but we also want the Police

          4  Department to actively help you and enforce and, if

          5  necessary, make arrests. And I could tell you, I was

          6  actually on site on this occasion, and I had my

          7  staff go right up to Commissioner Kelly's Office,

          8  and the Commissioner's Office told me, the Police

          9  Department has no authority to make any sort of

         10  arrest, even when the Department of Buildings asked.

         11                 So, I think that's the purpose of

         12  this bill and that language in this bill, and I

         13  think we really need to clear that up. Because there

         14  is a significant difference of opinion.

         15                 And I could tell you, I had another

         16  situation where the Police Department did assist the

         17  Department of Buildings about a year prior to this

         18  incident, where the Police Department seized

         19  equipment. I can tell you that sent a huge message

         20  to that developer. However, the Police Department

         21  now says in that case the Police Department exceeded

         22  their authority.

         23                 So, that's something we really need

         24  to clear up.

         25                 And the other thing, in terms of
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          2  notification. And I can certainly understand the

          3  technical issues involved in classifying it by zip

          4  code. And I would certainly appreciate your

          5  enthusiasm trying to find out if that's possible.

          6                 The reason we need to do something in

          7  terms of that, and this comes out of our discussions

          8  that we've had back and forth, is if you issue a

          9  stop work order, and it's, perhaps it's from the

         10  community board, my office, or another elected

         11  official, even the community, and it gets released,

         12  we won't find out maybe for days later. We don't get

         13  a phone call back. As soon as the community sees

         14  somebody working on that side, we get that phone

         15  call. We check the website, there is nothing on the

         16  website.

         17                 We then have to call your agency and

         18  get you to come back out again. We don't know what's

         19  going on.

         20                 Now, either it's effectively lifted,

         21  or they're violating the stop work order. And it's

         22  that lack of timely notification that not only leads

         23  to confusion but may lead to the developer getting

         24  away with something for a couple of days.

         25                 And as Council Member Fidler alluded
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          2  to, those developers are trying to beat the clock,

          3  in terms of vesting for a rezoning, those few days

          4  are extremely important.

          5                 So, the zip code issue I think is a

          6  compromise between your agency and us, to try and

          7  get some sort of mechanism by which we can easily

          8  ascertain when a stop work order is issued.

          9                 If you just do it on the individual

         10  site, that requires Council members and community

         11  boards almost each day to check hundreds of

         12  locations.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: I understand that. What

         14  is built in the BIS now is the community board. And

         15  what we are going to do is, it's currently posted on

         16  our website, but as you may remember from our

         17  discussion last May, although it's possible to get

         18  it by community board on the website, that's not

         19  necessarily the easiest thing to do. We certainly

         20  have trained a lot of members of your staff to do

         21  those searches, but we recognize that it needs to be

         22  made much more user-friendly.

         23                 I'm pleased to announce that this

         24  week we are going to start with a new page on our

         25  website, which will be called my community. It's
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          2  just in formation, but we intend to be able to put

          3  up a list of exactly what you asked for. But by

          4  community board, which I think will go a long way

          5  toward posting the information.

          6                 I looked, for example, at just

          7  Community Board 1, for example, and it was a

          8  reasonable number. It wasn't like hundreds of lists.

          9  You know, our lists with hundreds of properties

         10  where stop work orders had been issued, so we can do

         11  that for all community boards, but do it in I'd say

         12  a much more user-friendly way than navigating the My

         13  Statistic Section in the website.

         14                 To do it by zip code, essentially I

         15  think, I mean I was discussing just on Friday with

         16  the head of -- our Deputy Commissioner for

         17  Information and Technology, and, you know, she said

         18  she'd certainly be glad to look into it. She thinks

         19  the zip code would be a useful function to have.

         20                 Essentially, though, it's not for

         21  reasons best known to BIS back in the eighties,

         22  although they put in community boards, they simply

         23  didn't put in, overlay it with zip codes, perhaps

         24  because zip codes change when a large building is

         25  built, you know, it may get its own zip code, it was
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          2  not built into the system. But with some money, you

          3  know, and time, we think that could be built in and

          4  might be a useful function.

          5                 And similarly, on the daily postings,

          6  it's a matter of staff. I mean, we do have clerks

          7  who do this, and they are instructed to do it as

          8  soon as possible, but they have other things that

          9  must be entered similarly.

         10                 You know, we're up to now 89,000

         11  complaints a year. We're doing 300 -- over 300,000

         12  inspections a year. And all of these, you know,

         13  140,000 permits a year, all of that data has to be

         14  entered, and, you know, we really spent most of the

         15  resources that you've given us on inspectors and on

         16  plan examiners we probably do need more clerks, and

         17  we'll work with you on that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you. And

         19  once again, I appreciate the cooperation. I just

         20  hope we can continue this on all sides, the Police

         21  Department, the Council and the Administration, and

         22  get these bills passed. Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         24  Gentile, followed by Council Member Oddo.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Chairman. And Mr. Kramer, thank you for being

          3  here and your testimony today.

          4                 I'm just a little confused in that

          5  you indicated that you agree with the increased

          6  penalties but you said they should be amended to

          7  reflect a large initial penalty.

          8                 MR. KRAMER: Right. And in particular,

          9  a minimum. Right now the minimum is just of the

         10  fines assessed at Criminal Court and at the

         11  Environmental Control Board are completely within

         12  the discretion of, you know, of the judge, and we

         13  think for violation of a stop work order, if you're

         14  convicted of violating a stop work order, there

         15  should be a definite amount and a steep amount,

         16  which is, ultimately, your determination as to

         17  whether it should be 2,500 or 5,000. But we thought

         18  that the purpose of your bill was to make it higher,

         19  and since for many of these there already is a

         20  maximum of 5,000 but it doesn't seem to be having a

         21  current effect. Perhaps you should think of a

         22  minimum of 5,000 or 2,500, the dollar amount is your

         23  discretion.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Well, the 216

         25  that you referred to actually adds a new criminal
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          2  penalty to it. You didn't comment on that, which

          3  allows, provides for up to six months imprisonment,

          4  and a fine up to $15,000.

          5                 MR. KRAMER: Yes, there are existing

          6  misdemeanor provisions in the code, and we certainly

          7  support the addition of this. There is no problem

          8  with that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You would

         10  support this provision that would allow for up to

         11  15,000?

         12                 MR. KRAMER: As I said, we did. What

         13  we suggested, what we add was the maximum of 15,000

         14  --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Minimum.

         16                 MR. KRAMER: Minimum of two and a

         17  maximum --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Because the

         19  minimum could be zero otherwise.

         20                 MR. KRAMER: Right.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.

         22                 MR. KRAMER: So, I think that that's

         23  fine. I did suggest, though, that on the additional

         24  civil penalty, which that bill composed raising it

         25  from ten to 20 times. We've had some instances where
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          2  people had generally not known a permit was

          3  required. They thought that the permit, for example,

          4  or let's say a piece of equipment, was covered by

          5  another work permit that they had been issued, and

          6  it turned out to be a very steep permit fee for the

          7  particular type of equipment, and we did not have

          8  discretion to waive it. So we think the ten times,

          9  we should stay with the ten times amount.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, you're

         11  saying that that's the only instance where the

         12  initial penalty should not go up?

         13                 MR. KRAMER: No, I think in all of the

         14  provisions we thought a minimum penalty should be

         15  established.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Right. But

         17  you're saying that that provision.

         18                 MR. KRAMER: Right. On the civil

         19  penalties, which you say is a secondary, we don't

         20  see the need for an increase there.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay.

         22                 Now, there's a minimum here listed of

         23  $5,000, 216-A, as to that penalty. 216 says ten to

         24  20, raises it to 20 times, the minimum of $5,000 up

         25  from $500.
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Yes.

          4                 And is that provision something you

          5  would concur with?

          6                 MR. KRAMER: We thought that the

          7  minimum to go from $500 to 2,000 might be, you know,

          8  more appropriate. But, again, you know that's really

          9  your discretion as to the amounts that you think are

         10  appropriate. I just want to emphasize that that's an

         11  additional penalty in addition to the minimum two or

         12  five-thousand dollars that are set elsewhere in the

         13  bill, and so it's, I think these are duplicate

         14  penalties that you should be cognizant of that, even

         15  when you decide how much you want to impose.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, I see

         17  what you're saying.

         18                 Now, isn't it true, though, that when

         19  we go back to stop work orders, that the current law

         20  actually has a daily assessment, a daily penalty?

         21                 MR. KRAMER: I believe there is a

         22  daily provision, but it's not used.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: It's not

         24  followed.

         25                 MR. KRAMER: It's not used because
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          2  when you think -- the only other provision with

          3  which I am aware in the Building Code is for illegal

          4  conversions, which have a daily penalty.

          5                 And there essentially the law says

          6  you have, when you have been found to have illegally

          7  converted a home, let's say a two-family to a

          8  four-family dwelling, the law, and it has been

          9  upheld in that instance, that until you come in and

         10  serve proof that you have eliminated the illegal

         11  conversion, people are no longer living there, that

         12  presumption does exist that you should be assessed

         13  with a minimum daily penalty.

         14                 It's not that high a penalty, $100 or

         15  $200 a day, but for a single-family homeowner, it's

         16  very high.

         17                 For violation of a stop work order,

         18  the only way to prove that it is being violated on a

         19  daily basis, is to send an inspector there to see

         20  that there's a violation. So, we can only prove it

         21  by issuing, you know, observing it, so we think that

         22  the better way to impose the penalty is to send an

         23  inspector and issue the second violation, which has

         24  a very steep minimum penalty, and if they're in

         25  violation, which has an even higher one, which is

                                                            43

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  provided for in your bill.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, you would

          4  be sending out the inspector in any case, right?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: Right.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: In either

          7  case, whether it is a daily situation or a second

          8  violation or a third violation.

          9                 MR. KRAMER: Right. It's just that

         10  it's very unlikely where we have a City as large as

         11  this one, that we would be out there on a daily

         12  basis on most of the violations that are issued.

         13                 So, we generally are sending an

         14  inspector out on receipt of a complaint. Either it

         15  would be one of our best inspectors who goes out on

         16  sweeps, or because we received a citizen's

         17  complaint, and most of those would be for citizen

         18  complaints.

         19                 And, so, it's more appropriate to

         20  issue a second violation under the circumstance.

         21  Because let's say for the preceding day, we don't

         22  know that a violation occurred the preceding day.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Do you send

         24  inspectors out at least on an intermittent basis

         25  now?
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          2                 MR. KRAMER: At least on a?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Intermittent

          4  basis?

          5                 MR. KRAMER: Yes. Well, we have our

          6  best squad, which is the Building Enforcement Safety

          7  Team, which does residential sweeps.

          8                 And we also do, in areas that are

          9  subject to downzoning, we also send out people on,

         10  and particularly where there's been a history of

         11  violations --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And they only

         13  get violated for that day?

         14                 MR. KRAMER: For that day, because we

         15  can't prove that they were working on a previous

         16  day.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, these

         18  second or third violations would be on the same

         19  project. We're not talking about a contractor who,

         20  in the past, violated a stop work order and then

         21  violates a stop work order on a different site?

         22                 MR. KRAMER: That's correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: We're talking

         24  about the same site?

         25                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: The same

          3  project.

          4                 MR. KRAMER: And right now, the

          5  provisions, as you say, are not being followed? The

          6  daily provisions?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: The daily

          8  provisions, as you say, are not being followed?

          9  Daily provisions?

         10                 MR. KRAMER: The daily penalties. No,

         11  it's not possible to enforce them.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, I think

         13  I'm done. Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         15  Member Gentile.

         16                 Council Member Oddo.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman. After listening to Council Member Fidler,

         19  I realize that last week we had a hearing about

         20  bats, and apparently we're having a hearing about

         21  balls.

         22                 It was my understanding that in the

         23  new code that the Council will pass next year in

         24  conjunction with the Administration, that the issue

         25  of increasing penalties and increasing fines and
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          2  really adding some teeth to DOB, it would be

          3  addressed via that vehicle.

          4                 So, I guess the question is, is this,

          5  are these pieces of legislation consistent with that

          6  approach? Is it in conflict with that approach? If

          7  we didn't pass these bills would you be addressing

          8  these particular areas in the code and what other

          9  areas in the code can we expect to be amended, via

         10  the new model code that we pass?

         11                 MR. KRAMER: I think that what's very

         12  helpful would be to see some of these bills pass

         13  before the model code because they will help give us

         14  a signal as to what the Council would like to see in

         15  the way of enforcement provisions. We addressed the

         16  similar issue, I think it was last year, on some

         17  other substantive provisions and that same issued

         18  was raised. And as I said, we will incorporate

         19  anything that you pass substantively or procedurally

         20  into the model code, so that would be our goal.

         21                 Now, there will be -- we're currently

         22  drafting provisions, additional administrative

         23  provisions, which we'll certainly be discussing with

         24  you. There really are many different ways to go

         25  there and we're pretty much still in just the
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          2  discussion phase as to whether or not what other

          3  tools we might use. We've been discussing this with

          4  other agencies, as well. You know, the model code is

          5  such a large effort that I would be -- I'd like

          6  certainly to see the Council continue to focus on

          7  some things like these, and then we'll incorporate

          8  these changes into the model code and then do

          9  additional ones, but only after discussion with you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Okay, then

         11  that's a great answer.

         12                 With that said, are there any other

         13  areas that you would like to throw out there that

         14  you would want the Council to legislate, contemplate

         15  in the next couple of months prior to the Code being

         16  passed?

         17                 MR. KRAMER: Well, as was mentioned

         18  earlier, the Commissioner is very interested in

         19  seeing the General Contractor legislation,

         20  registration, because indeed if that were passed

         21  before the code, it would be a fight that we

         22  wouldn't have to have when the code is presented.

         23                 I know that's one that we would like

         24  to see.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: We're working on
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          2  that as we speak. And I thank you, the Department,

          3  for all the help in drafting actually what is a

          4  better bill than the bill that was on the table last

          5  years and years previously.

          6                 MR. KRAMER: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Jimmy, we're going

          8  to send you the bill for plugging the legislation.

          9  But it was a nice attempt.

         10                 Council Member Recchia.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes. Good

         12  morning.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Good morning.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I'm a sponsor

         15  of 132-A, you know, co-sponsor of the other bills,

         16  but as I read your testimony and go through it, what

         17  I'm tired of hearing is when the Buildings

         18  Department comes down to a job that's not properly

         19  going on, we're tired of hearing, me and my

         20  colleagues are tired of hearing, well, we can't

         21  close it down, we can't do this, we can't do that.

         22  You know, then the police, like you heard earlier

         23  the police say we don't have the authority to do

         24  that. What we're trying to do is make sure that

         25  these bills address these issues.
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          2                 Are these bills giving the Buildings

          3  Department enough ammunition, what you need to stop

          4  some of these jobs that are going down illegally,

          5  without permits, and they're not properly being

          6  built?

          7                 MR. KRAMER: I think they will go a

          8  long way to increasing enforcement.

          9                 I think, you know, essentially this

         10  is an iterative process. You know, we found we had a

         11  very successful enforcement effort in Manhattan

         12  Beach last year, where as you may know that a number

         13  of the buildings that had been built illegally,

         14  where there were flagrant violations of stop work

         15  orders, we were very effective and a number of those

         16  buildings are now in deconstruction, where, you

         17  know, the excessive height, the excessive floors

         18  were taken down.

         19                 It's painful for the property owner,

         20  but it's something that's absolutely necessary. I

         21  think that putting in some very significant minimum

         22  fines, you know, I think the $500 minimum fine, $250

         23  minimum fine, which are in the code now, were

         24  probably put in there decades ago, and when

         25  properties had a much, much smaller value, and now a
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          2  contractor or owner can just do that as a cost of

          3  doing business, and that's why I think these

          4  penalties will really go a long way toward helping

          5  us.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: You know,

          7  these contractors, you know, when I go to jobs and I

          8  start arguing, and then the times Buildings

          9  Department comes down, you know, they have total

         10  disregard for the community. They just think that

         11  they can come there and build and do what they want,

         12  and, you know, we're just tired of it. We get the

         13  complaints in the City Council offices and we just

         14  feel that we have to work together with the

         15  Buildings Department.

         16                 With the criminal end of it, do you

         17  see that being strictly enforced? How can we make

         18  sure that that end of it? Because I really believe

         19  that once you start enforcing the criminal end of

         20  it, and I don't like to throw anybody in jail or

         21  send anyone to go to jail, but, you know, if that's

         22  what it's going to take to make these developers and

         23  contractors, you know, to pay attention, to respect

         24  a community, then that's what we have to do. I mean,

         25  how do you see that end of it? I mean is that
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          2  realistic?

          3                 MR. KRAMER: What we do right now is

          4  we use the existing criminal penalty sparingly. But

          5  we do issue Criminal Court summonses on a regular

          6  basis.

          7                 You know, when you have an egregious

          8  violator, Criminal Court is, as you noted, does get

          9  people's attention much more. But it does require a

         10  much more cumbersome process. But the courts do have

         11  a part for this type of summons which is returnable.

         12                 The reason the Environmental Control

         13  Board was created back in the eighties was because

         14  the Criminal Courts were not concerned with these

         15  things and we can't use them on a daily basis for

         16  minor violations of the Building Code. But for these

         17  kinds of serious violations, particularly the ones

         18  involving public safety, whether it be an unlicensed

         19  plumber, you know, involved in gas main work, or

         20  unlicensed electrical contractor. Contractors, you

         21  know, going out and demolishing buildings without

         22  permits, without doing excavation work, which

         23  damages adjacent property owners. These are the

         24  areas where we're going to go out and use our

         25  ability to issue Criminal Court summonses. But we
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          2  don't have, not all of our inspectors are peace

          3  officers.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No, we

          5  understand that. That's why, you know, you heard

          6  before when a Police Department says they don't have

          7  the authority to do this, we want to make sure that

          8  once these bills are passed, that this

          9  Administration is going to sit down with the Police

         10  Department and make sure that it gets passed, that

         11  they know that this has to be strictly enforced.

         12  Because we're just not going to pass these bills and

         13  then have the criminal end of it never be enforced,

         14  just, you know, just be there on paper. That's what

         15  we don't want to happen. We're not going to stand by

         16  and look at this, because, you know, I'm tired of

         17  getting complaints. I'm tired of hearing all of this

         18  development and dealing with the problems.

         19  Especially, you know, it's mostly the small builders

         20  that are doing this, the builders of the one-, two-

         21  and three-family homes, who have a total disregard

         22  for the community.

         23                 I have no further questions. Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. And I
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          2  just want to acknowledge that we've been joined by

          3  Council Member Leroy Comrie.

          4                 I'd like to thank you for coming down

          5  and providing the Department of Buildings a position

          6  on these legislative matters. And we look forward to

          7  passing these intros in conjunction with the

          8  Department. And I was also remiss in not

          9  acknowledging Council Member Dennis Gallagher, who

         10  is a member of the Committee.

         11                 So, we'd like to thank you and we

         12  look forward to working with you on these measures.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Thank you very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Okay, I only have

         15  two members of the public interested in speaking on

         16  these items. If there is anyone else in the audience

         17  that's interested, please see the Sergeant-At-Arms

         18  and fill out the appearance card, but we'll call up

         19  Michael McGuire of the Mason Tenders' District

         20  Council, and a Mr. Irwin Echtman from the New York

         21  City Demolition Association.

         22                 And I'm going to ask Mr. Echtman to

         23  go first since he checked out his appearance card in

         24  opposition. I would like to give the opposition a

         25  chance to weigh in on their -- present their opinion
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          2  first.

          3                 MR. ECHTMAN: To be quite accurate,

          4  I'm only partly in opposition, and I will explain my

          5  position.

          6                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and members

          7  of the Committee for the invitation to speak here

          8  today. My name is Irwin Echtman. I'm a member of the

          9  lawfirm of Echtman and Etkind, LLP. I have been

         10  counsel to the New York City Demolition Contractors

         11  Association for almost 30 years.

         12                 The members of this Association do

         13  approximately 80 percent by dollar volume of the

         14  demolition in New York City each year.

         15                 I'm also counsel to the Interior

         16  Demolition Contractors Association. It's an

         17  association of more than 30 members. We jokingly say

         18  they do the inside jobs.

         19                 Now, you are the legislators. You

         20  make the laws. As counsel to the associations, I

         21  deal with the impact of those laws and how your

         22  legislation plays out in the trenches on the

         23  contractors.

         24                 The proposed legislation is clearly

         25  motivated by need to curtail construction abuses and

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  enhance public safety. Our associations are on the

          3  same page with you in this regard.

          4                 Now, proposed Intro. 43-A provides

          5  for arrest of persons engaged in criminal activity,

          6  and I don't see any definition of criminal activity

          7  in here. And it calls for seizure of equipment being

          8  used to engage in the same undefined criminal

          9  activity.

         10                 Intro. 216-A criminalizes the

         11  violation of a stop work order. My focus is on

         12  procedural safeguards, because on the surface these

         13  provisions seem quite reasonable.

         14                 In actual practice, they may have

         15  serious consequences, such as disruption of the

         16  construction program in the City of New York, and I

         17  will explain that.

         18                 Demolition of an existing building is

         19  the first step in the construction of a new, larger

         20  building. It becomes impossible for the responsible

         21  contracts, who, of course, I represent, if it

         22  becomes impossible for them to work, construction

         23  will be seriously impaired.

         24                 The logical question for you to ask

         25  is why would or should enforcement of very
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          2  reasonable laws designed to enhance public safety

          3  have a negative affect on construction?

          4                 The answer lies in the enforcement

          5  procedures relating to these provisions. I speak not

          6  of hypotheticals but of actual cases and procedures.

          7                 The BEST Squad, with which you are

          8  obviously familiar, routinely inspects demolition

          9  sites, and also responds to complaints. In the first

         10  instance, when we get a stop work order it's issued

         11  by the BEST Squad.

         12                 Now, here is an actual case. A

         13  building was being demolished on Warren Street. On

         14  Friday, March 31st, 2006, a complaint was called

         15  into the BEST Squad by an adjoining property owner,

         16  whose primary motivation was in stopping demolition

         17  of the adjoining building, because he did not want

         18  to see a taller building going up in its place. It

         19  would affect his satellite dish.

         20                 Seems the owner new somebody in the

         21  City Administration and filed a complaint, or called

         22  in a complaint. An inspector, with apparent

         23  instructions to write a violation no matter what,

         24  came to the demolition site.

         25                 The inspector wrote a violation for
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          2  failure to have a light bulb on the inside of the

          3  building that was being demolished.

          4                 The inspector marked this hazardous

          5  and he put a stop work notation on the NOV. Now,

          6  here's the problem. He didn't give the NOV to

          7  anybody at that time. That was Friday afternoon.

          8  Monday morning, the contractor came to work with no

          9  knowledge of the stop work order. The inspector was

         10  back, this time issuing a summons for failing to

         11  obey the stop work order. The crew of 15 workers was

         12  sent home.

         13                 But adjudication of these NOVs is not

         14  before a court, but is at the Environmental Control

         15  Board, a City agency. I've tried hundreds of cases

         16  at the Environmental Control Board. There are good

         17  judges and there are not so good judges. But there

         18  is one pervading principle that applies, and that is

         19  the contractor is guilty, unless he proves himself

         20  innocent beyond a reasonable doubt.

         21                 Our criminal justice system is based

         22  on the opposite of presumption of innocence what

         23  contractor will risk violations which can, even if

         24  unintentional, and done without knowledge, result in

         25  imprisonment, not exceeding six months, or a fine of
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          2  not more than $15,000. Which contractor will take

          3  the risk of imprisonment for violating an order of

          4  which he has no notice?

          5                 Incidentally, under the rules of the

          6  ECB, posting an NOV on a fence, and mailing a copy

          7  to the contractor is insufficient notice.

          8                 I've had another case where a

          9  violation was allegedly stuck to a fence on a very

         10  rainy day and mailed to the contractor at a wrong

         11  address, even though the NOV that was written had

         12  the correct address. Naturally the contractor

         13  violated the stop work order, he knew nothing about

         14  it.

         15                 He was nevertheless found guilty and

         16  fined by the ECB. Now, demolition is a very

         17  difficult and inherently dangerous job. Those who

         18  perform the work need the assistance, not the

         19  opposition of City agencies to protect the public to

         20  ensure reasonable and safe working conditions.

         21                 I personally have had several

         22  meetings with the head of the BEST Squad. I have

         23  asked him to have a telephone call or a fax sent to

         24  the contractor when there is an unsafe condition

         25  recorded by one of his inspectors.
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          2                 The contractor will take steps

          3  immediately to ameliorate the problem. Phone calls

          4  are not made, faxes are not sent. The answer was no.

          5                 Can you legislate an aura of

          6  cooperation wherein the Department of Buildings

          7  works in tandem with contractors to ensure site

          8  safety and a smooth progress of demolition.

          9                 An adversarial relationship between

         10  the City agencies that rightfully monitor the work

         11  on the one hand and the responsible contractors on

         12  the other hand, does not in any way benefit the City

         13  of New York in smoothing the path of construction

         14  and progress.

         15                 Continuing on the issue of stop

         16  orders, Section 26-118 as it presently stands names

         17  conditions which warrant issuance of a stop order.

         18                 These include but are not limited

         19  to:

         20                 - the failure to have a construction

         21  site safety coordinator present in the course of an

         22  ongoing construction at those sites where the

         23  Department of Rules and Regulations require it.

         24                 - the failure to erect a sidewalk

         25  shed, or portions thereof, or to remove it too soon.
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          2                 These are violations which rightfully

          3  should create the issuance of a stop order. But here

          4  are examples of other violations which result in the

          5  stop orders.

          6                 No lighting on the first floor

          7  entranceway. Stop all work until lighting is

          8  installed.

          9                 My God, how long does it take to get

         10  a light bulb? The entire crew was sent home until

         11  there could be a reinspection.

         12                 Next, another violation, an excessive

         13  amount of debris was viewed at the job site. Remedy:

         14  Stop all work, remove debris at job site, call BEST

         15  for reinspection.

         16                 Query: How do you remove the debris

         17  if you've been ordered to stop work?

         18                 Next instance. Second floor

         19  overloaded with steel. Now, the inspector here did

         20  not know the weight of the steel, did not know the

         21  bearing capacity of the floor, did not know how to

         22  calculate it, but made a subjective judgment call

         23  and required all work to stop until the material and

         24  equipment was properly stored.

         25                 Now, how does one both stop work and
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          2  remove the steel?

          3                 Sometimes the stop order says stop

          4  all work except what's necessary to fuel the

          5  violation. Sometimes it doesn't say that, just stop

          6  all work.

          7                 Another one: Failure to waterproof

          8  adjacent buildings. Stop all work. Now, I could type

          9  more, but the point has been made.

         10                 Now we come to the process of

         11  recision of a stop work order. At present a

         12  telephone call was made to the BEST Squad. A

         13  reinspection takes place, usually within a short

         14  period of time, and the work, and the stop work

         15  order is lifted. But proposal 43-A increases the

         16  paperwork that by providing that recision of a stop

         17  work order shall not be valid until it is made in

         18  writing in a form prescribed by the Department, et

         19  cetera. It could be much simpler.

         20                 The current process for recision of a

         21  stop work order works. The idea is to minimize loss

         22  of working time for the crew. These men are paid for

         23  their work and should not be penalized by excessive

         24  down time.

         25                 Further, with respect to the
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          2  criminalization of violations of stop work orders,

          3  it should be noted that contractors, the responsible

          4  ones who perform work for City agencies, are

          5  required to file Vendex forms to report all

          6  violations and criminal proceedings.

          7                 The Mayor's Office on Contract

          8  Procurement has the right to send out cautionary

          9  notices, which will have the effect of preventing

         10  contractors from performing work for City agencies.

         11  There are frightfully few contractors who are

         12  qualified to demolition work, and very few

         13  demolition contractors who are really good in the

         14  City, frightfully few who are qualified to do this

         15  for the Department of Housing Preservation and

         16  Development. That agency is constantly searching for

         17  qualified contractors.

         18                 There are only three or four A

         19  contractors on the bid list of HPD. In fact, there

         20  are qualified contractors who are declined to work

         21  for HPD because of the difficulties in getting paid

         22  for their work. That's another subject.

         23                 However, criminalizing violation of a

         24  stop work order where the violations are

         25  unintentional, and if there is no notice
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          2  unavoidable, may further shrink the ranks of

          3  qualified contractors working for HPD and other City

          4  agencies.

          5                 The City can overregulate

          6  construction companies to the point where they

          7  cannot do business with the City of New York.

          8                 If that happens, nobody gains.

          9  Everybody loses. The message I'm trying to convey is

         10  do not over legislate. There should be a balance.

         11  Violations of stop work orders should be treated

         12  seriously, but under the present system of NOV

         13  adjudications, the deck is stacked against the

         14  contractor.

         15                 What I'm asking for is that in your

         16  legislation you place procedural safeguards. If

         17  you're going to criminalize them, at least provide

         18  that there must be personal service on the

         19  contractor at his place of business. Require

         20  scienter, that is knowledge. The violation to

         21  engender a criminal sanction must be done with

         22  knowledge that the violation is occurring.

         23                 In short, our members of the New York

         24  City Demolition Contractors Association, do not

         25  knowingly flout and disregard stop work orders. They
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          2  are responsible contractors, and I suggest they are

          3  entitled to the procedural safeguards that any other

          4  citizen would have.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you. And

          7  before we get to questions I'll allow Mr. McGuire to

          8  testify.

          9                 MR. McGUIRE: Good morning, Chairman

         10  Dilan and distinguished Committee members. My name

         11  is Mike McGuire and I am the Director of the Mason

         12  Tenders' District Council of Greater New York

         13  Political Action Committee.

         14                 As I believe everybody on the panel

         15  knows, we represent 15,000 members of the Laborers

         16  International Union in six local unions throughout

         17  New York City. Among the workers that we represent

         18  are demolition workers, and I want to just put it

         19  out there, it's not on my testimony because I didn't

         20  know Mr. Echtman was testifying today, but Mr.

         21  Echtman, who noted the hardship of the work crews

         22  several times, I would estimate that 98 percent of

         23  the employees of the contractors Mr. Echtman

         24  represents are my members, except of course on those

         25  jobs where they're cheating and using non-union
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          2  workers. Which, you know, happens fairly often.

          3                 Construction remains the most

          4  dangerous major industry in the country. And while

          5  workplace fatalities and other industries have

          6  declined over the last decade and a half, they have

          7  grown in the construction industry.

          8                 According to the Department of

          9  Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistics, fatalities in

         10  the construction industry rose from 919 in 1992 to

         11  1,047 in '96, to 1,171 in 2003, to 1,238 in 2005.

         12  The statistics also show the construction laborers

         13  bear the brunt of these fatal accidents.

         14                 For instance, in 2001, 32 operating

         15  engineers were killed on job site accidents. The

         16  same year 38 painters, 71 electricians were killed.

         17                 The second highest trade on the list

         18  was carpenters with 101 fatal accidents. One on the

         19  list, construction laborers with 335 killed, more

         20  than ten times the number of operating engineers,

         21  more than three times the next highest trade on the

         22  list.

         23                 Several years ago in the front-page

         24  article published in New York Daily News outlined

         25  the dangers of working in the demolition industry.
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          2  Tom Robbins reported that 12 workers were killed in

          3  demolition accidents in New York City between '94

          4  and '99, making demolition the single most dangerous

          5  construction trade.

          6                 Construction continues to be among

          7  the deadliest, if not the most deadly industry in

          8  New York City.

          9                 The Bureau of Labor Statistics

         10  records also show that in a two-year period between

         11  January 2003 and December 2004, the last period for

         12  which data is available, there were no less than 51

         13  fatal construction accidents in New York City and

         14  demolition continues to be the deadliest of the

         15  construction trades.

         16                 On Friday, when I searched the New

         17  York Daily News Archives for combined search terms

         18  of killed and demolition, the search engine returned

         19  67 references between October 1997 and the present.

         20                 The demolition industry is in

         21  desperate need of oversight, and these bills will

         22  definitely help in that respect.

         23                 Intro. 3-A will make the conducting

         24  of demolition without a permit a crime punishable by

         25  up to $5,000 fine and six months in jail, and make
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          2  the person convicted personally liable for a civil

          3  fine of up to $5,000.

          4                 Intro. 132-A also increases the

          5  penalties for conducting demolition without a

          6  permit, but only regarding one-, and two-family

          7  homes.

          8                 Curiously, the penalties on Intro.

          9  132-A are harsher than those in Intro. 3-A. Intro

         10  132-A calls for a $10,000 criminal civil fine,

         11  accompanying the possibility of six months in jail,

         12  as well as a 90-day ban on being issued permits to

         13  conduct demolition.

         14                 We support the stronger penalties and

         15  urge the amending of Intro. 3-A, so the penalties

         16  are the same as those as in Intro. 132-A.

         17                 However, even as amended, the penalty

         18  section of 3-A and 132-A are lacking. This bill

         19  states, "Any person who is convicted of conducting

         20  demolition work without a permit shall be guilty of

         21  misdemeanor and shall be punishable by a fine and

         22  not to exceed $5,000..." or $10,000 in the case of

         23  132-A, "or by imprisonment, not to exceed six

         24  months, or both."

         25                 The rotunda of City Hall, as well as
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          2  the halls of the legislative office building in

          3  Albany and the capital in Washington are

          4  figuratively littered with good laws that are

          5  nothing more than toothless tigers.

          6                 Plainly said, we have a lot of good

          7  laws on the books, but very little enforcement and

          8  penalties so small that they do not act as a

          9  deterrent in any meaningful way.

         10                 This section should be amended to

         11  read for the fines to be punishable of not less than

         12  five or ten-thousand dollars, and for the jail time

         13  to make it a Class A misdemeanor, and by

         14  imprisonment not to exceed one year.

         15                 Intro. 43-A also allows the NYPD to

         16  arrest persons violating stop work orders, and

         17  allows the NYPD to seize their equipment. It also

         18  requires the Department of Buildings to post and

         19  maintain on their website a list of all addresses

         20  for which all stop work orders have been issued and

         21  once recinded, the date of recision and the

         22  addresses of the site of the stop work orders.

         23                 This information must be posted on

         24  the website immediately upon the issuance of a

         25  recision of a stop work order.
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          2                 Again, this is another bill that will

          3  help save lives in the demolition industry.

          4                 The only change we would like to see

          5  in 43-A is clarification of some of the language.

          6                 As written, the bill states, "such

          7  enforcement may include the arrest of persons

          8  engaged in criminal activity and to the extent

          9  permitted by law the seizure of equipment being used

         10  to engage in criminal activity."

         11                 This language should be amended to

         12  make it clear that supervisory personnel, managers

         13  and principals of the company are the ones who may

         14  be subject to arrest.

         15                 As someone who has spent 16 years in

         16  the field as a laborer, from coffee boy to shop

         17  steward to foreman, to construction superintendent

         18  on multi-million dollar projects, I can truthfully

         19  say that more often than not there is no way for the

         20  worker to know that a stop work order has been

         21  issued.

         22                 Therefore, the bill should be amended

         23  so innocent workers do not find themselves under

         24  arrest, only the persons of a supervisory nature and

         25  company principals who have ordered the demolition
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          2  workers to violate the stop work order.

          3                 Intro. 216-A is a local law to amend

          4  the administrative code of the City of New York in

          5  relation to increasing the penalties for a violation

          6  of stop work order and for working without a permit.

          7  This bill quadruples the civil penalty for working

          8  in violation of stop work order to $2,000 per day

          9  from 500. This bill also creates a criminal penalty

         10  for violation of a stop work order of up to, a fine

         11  of up to $15,000 and as much as six months in jail.

         12                 Further, this bill doubles the

         13  penalty for working without a permit and increases

         14  the minimum fine ten-fold to $5,000 up from 500.

         15                 We fully support this legislation.

         16  Actually, after hearing DOB testify, and the real

         17  realities of having an inspector out there day after

         18  day after day to do an assessment on a daily basis,

         19  I think I agree with their concept of if it's the

         20  same stop work order, you issue it on a Monday, and

         21  they go out on Wednesday and it's still, you know,

         22  hit them with the second higher fine, but there is

         23  no way to know whether they were working on Tuesday

         24  without putting somebody out there. It's a tax on

         25  the resources. So, I think we would be happy to see
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          2  that change made.

          3                 In closing, I would urge this

          4  Committee to once again take up Intros 329 of 2006

          5  and 330 of 2006. Intro. 329, which would require a

          6  license construction safety coordinator, or as

          7  specified in the bill, a demolition site safety

          8  coordinatory on all demolition sites would go

          9  further to ensure the safety of both workers and the

         10  general public than any bill being discussed here

         11  today.

         12                 Intro. 330, which creates a licensing

         13  requirement for demolition contractors, would also

         14  go a long way in taming a sector that has been seen

         15  as the wild wild west to the construction industry.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you both for

         18  your opinions on the proposed legislation. They are

         19  now part of the record. I understand that counsel

         20  will look them over.

         21                 I have no questions, I guess I'm

         22  going to defer to the members of the Committee at

         23  this time. And I also want to say I personally liked

         24  the site and safety coordinator legislation that's

         25  proposed by Council Member Comrie, and I'm hopeful
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          2  that this Committee will look at that in the very

          3  near future.

          4                 We'll start out with Council Member

          5  Recchia, followed by Avella.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Yes. Good

          7  morning, Mr. Echtman. How are you doing?

          8                 You know, I sit here and I hear your

          9  testimony, and you give all these examples, but we

         10  were forced to write these bills. You know why we

         11  were forced to write these bills? Because it was

         12  your members that have a total disregard for the

         13  people of the City of New York.

         14                 Do you realize that?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Yes, Council

         16  member, I just would urge that you don't

         17  personalize.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: I'm not

         19  personalizing.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: It's not certain

         21  that it was his members. It could have been anybody

         22  in the City.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: Well, don't

         24  you represent the demolition?

         25                 MR. ECHTMAN: We have approximately 11
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          2  companies that are members of the Association. There

          3  may be 100 companies that are not members of the

          4  Association. By and large, the members of the

          5  association are the responsible contractors. If a

          6  contractor is unresponsible, we don't permit them in

          7  the Association.

          8                 The issue I was addressing is not the

          9  stop work order itself or the enforcement. I happen

         10  to agree with the position, with your position, that

         11  stop work orders should be enforced.

         12                 My main point is that there should be

         13  procedural safeguards for the contractors so that

         14  they can at least have notice of the stop work

         15  order.

         16                 My argument is with stop work orders

         17  that are issued with no notice to the contractor, no

         18  notice that's intended to get to the contractor, and

         19  then an enforcement procedure starts.

         20                 We are on the same page with respect

         21  to stop work orders. We are on the same page with

         22  respect to responsible demolition. Companies I

         23  represent, as I said, do 80 percent of the

         24  demolition in New York City. They do the highrise,

         25  they take down the jails. One in Brooklyn was
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          2  recently taken down. They do the tough jobs. It is a

          3  very difficult business. And as Mr. McGuire points

          4  out, it is inherently a dangerous business.

          5  Safeguards are necessary, and we agree.

          6                 What I am addressing, however, as I

          7  said, is make sure that before you're going to seek

          8  to impose a criminal penalty, make sure that there's

          9  been notice to the contractor and knowledge by the

         10  contractor that he's violating the law. That's my

         11  primary point.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No, we're not

         13  disagreeing about safety. Safety is very concerning.

         14  That's what we're about. But when you say make sure

         15  that they give the notice and make sure that they're

         16  properly notified of the violation, what happens

         17  when they go to the job and they say who is in

         18  charge here, who is the supervisor, and everyone

         19  says, oh, he's not here, this one, that one. I've

         20  seen it happen. I've seen it happen. These

         21  inspectors go to the job, and want to know who is in

         22  charge. I don't know, go ask him. Believe me, that

         23  happens.

         24                 What's the inspector supposed to do?

         25  Hold on. Stop. Let me go find out the company. Go
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          2  into Manhattan. Go to their office. Go chase them

          3  down. That's what you're saying for the inspector to

          4  do.

          5                 MR. ECHTMAN: No, not at all.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: No?

          7                 What should the inspector do? You

          8  give the examples. What should the inspector do when

          9  they go to the job and they say where is the

         10  supervisor, who is in charge, and nobody answers

         11  them?

         12                 MR. ECHTMAN: I have personally asked

         13  the head of the BEST Squad when there is a problem

         14  on a job, you have the name, address and phone

         15  number of the contractor on the permit.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Mr. Echtman, I

         17  just want to ask you to speak more directly into the

         18  microphone.

         19                 MR. ECHTMAN: I have personally asked

         20  the BEST Squad --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Pull it down.

         22                 MR. ECHTMAN: Is that better?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Yes.

         24                 MR. ECHTMAN: Okay. I've asked the

         25  head of the BEST Squad, when there is a problem on
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          2  the job, please call the contractor. I've met with

          3  them on more than one occasion. Tell the contractor

          4  the problem, he'll get it fixed.

          5                 If there needs to be a stop order, a

          6  telephone call will do it, a fax will do it, a

          7  mailing to the contractor's address. The

          8  contractor's name and address is on the permit. Just

          9  notify him. That's all I'm asking.

         10                 My problem here has been violations

         11  of stop orders where the notice was not given in a

         12  way that would ensure that he got it. Sticking it on

         13  a fence somewhere doesn't do it.

         14                 But faxing it, mailing it, calling

         15  the office does do it.

         16                 If a contractor is a fly-by-night

         17  contractor, so that he has no office, no place of

         18  reaching him, then I have no interest in him. He is

         19  not one of our associations. Our members are the

         20  responsible contractors. They couldn't take down

         21  highrises if they weren't.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: But you still

         23  didn't answer my question. The question was, when

         24  the inspector goes to the job and says who is in

         25  charge and he gets the run around, they're supposed
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          2  to contact you? I mean, what you're saying is

          3  unrealistic. It's bad enough that these contractors

          4  have a disregard for the community, a disregard to

          5  the people that live in the community, a disregard

          6  for the workers on there. You still didn't answer

          7  that question.

          8                 MR. ECHTMAN: With all due respect, if

          9  the inspector gets the run around, I'm not saying it

         10  doesn't happen, if the inspector gets the run

         11  around, send the notice of violation to the company.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA: But you know

         13  what? In that time it's too late and that's why, you

         14  know, it's not fair to the inspector. And you know

         15  what? Again I'm going to repeat what I said at the

         16  beginning, no one is to blame but the companies that

         17  you represent, because they're the ones that are

         18  forcing us to do this, okay?

         19                 You know, meanwhile inspectors have

         20  to go back to their office, start faxing. Then, oh,

         21  I didn't get the fax. You didn't address it to me.

         22  No, believe me, I'm an attorney, I've seen the

         23  run-around, I know what goes on, and I've got to

         24  tell you, it's not right. And until your members

         25  start treating the people of the City in the right
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          2  manner, and start protecting the workers, the things

          3  are not going to change. It's a two-way street here.

          4  You want us to amend it and make it so they're no

          5  responsible? You know what, you don't feel no

          6  sympathy from me because I'm tired of getting the

          7  complaints and seeing the people getting the run

          8  around from this industry.

          9                 Thank you. No further questions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         11                 Council Member Avella.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair.

         14                 Mr. Echtman, I'm going to give you

         15  the benefit of the doubt and say that maybe your

         16  members are not the ones committing the actions out

         17  there we're concerned about. But your testimony

         18  concerned me a little bit because you're in effect

         19  saying that the deck is stacked against the

         20  contractor. It's actually the reverse.

         21                 The contractor has the deck stacked

         22  for them. And that's what we're trying to change.

         23  We're trying to swing the pendulum back to protect

         24  the residents of this City and legitimate home

         25  owners and property owners. I think you have to
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          2  understand that. I think once you get to that point

          3  you'll understand the purpose of this legislation.

          4                 In terms of, I certainly back up

          5  comments of my colleague Councilman Recchia, in

          6  terms of notification.

          7                 You get to a job site and everybody

          8  pretends ignorance. The inspector has no choice to

          9  do what he does. If in fact you're not happy with

         10  the Department of Buildings, and I don't think

         11  anybody involved in construction is happy with the

         12  Department of Buildings, that's another issue, but I

         13  think we clearly have to crack down on the illegal

         14  construction, the illegal demolition and the

         15  violation to stop work orders.

         16                 I'd be more than happy to discuss

         17  some suggestions with you, but certainly not in

         18  terms of changing the system because it's the only

         19  way that it works.

         20                 Mike, I want to thank you for your

         21  suggestions on my legislation. We'll certainly take

         22  a look at them and where possible, incorporate them.

         23                 MR. McGUIRE: And if I could make

         24  another suggestion based on what Councilman Recchia

         25  brought up. I would suggest a piece of legislation

                                                            80

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  where if an inspector goes on site and there is no

          3  supervisory personnel to be found and nobody to step

          4  up, it's a stop work order. Because do you want -- I

          5  mean, honestly, do you want people out there with

          6  nobody supervising them, tearing down a building?

          7  So, if everyone is saying there is no foreman here,

          8  there is no super here, there is no owner here, shut

          9  them down.

         10                 MR. ECHTMAN: And I would join in

         11  that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA: But we have

         13  agreement then.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         15  Mendez. Followed by Gentile.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: I want to

         17  thank you both for your testimony.

         18                 Mr. Echtman, I just wanted to know,

         19  in what ways is it stacked against the contractors?

         20  Because certainly, you know, what we're seeing in

         21  all the boroughs, whether it's a small or big

         22  construction site, is violations of working permits,

         23  most of them amount to a slap on the wrist.

         24  Violation of stop work orders where individuals'

         25  lives are at risk. People in the street. I had a
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          2  falling crane in my district on Third Avenue where

          3  we and many residents had made many, many

          4  complaints. There were several workers and people in

          5  the street who were taken to the hospital as a

          6  result of what happened there.

          7                 So, I'm not quite sure what the deck

          8  is that's stacked against the contractor and would

          9  like you to detail that. Because I think what we're

         10  trying to do here is talk about the safety and the

         11  interest of all individuals, workers, contractors,

         12  and those contactors who do want to do good work

         13  will not be subject to these fines and these

         14  violations that we're talking about. I think they

         15  will live up to the code. It's those other ones that

         16  we need to get at. So, if you could please tell me

         17  what are the ways is the deck stacked against the

         18  contractors.

         19                 MR. ECHTMAN: I think that all

         20  contractors should abide by the code - members of my

         21  Association, non-members of my Association. The Code

         22  is there for a purpose. I have no argument with any

         23  provisions of the Code.

         24                 I don't recall if I used the words

         25  "deck stacked against," but what happens in
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          2  practice, in actual practice, yes, I guess it's in

          3  writing, what happens in actual practice is that

          4  when you come before the ECB, the adjudicating

          5  agency, as I said there are some very good judges

          6  and there are some other judges who feel that there

          7  should be a conviction no matter what.

          8                 Taken from the point of view of the

          9  defense attorney, when I'm defending a violation,

         10  and I have the statute, the ordinance, the violation

         11  is charged of Section 2693 and there is a

         12  description of the violation in the notice of

         13  violation, and I read the notice of violation, and I

         14  read Section 1039 and there is nothing in 1039 which

         15  describes the particular conduct that's been

         16  described.

         17                 I make the point. And I have the

         18  situation where the judge will say, well, let me

         19  search the rules, let me search the statutes and see

         20  if I can find something else that has been violated.

         21  And I said, well, if that happens, it's being

         22  violated, it's a process where we have no notice

         23  what we're being charged with. That kind of thing

         24  happens.

         25                 Now, there are judges, and the
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          2  majority of the judges, I think, at the ECB give you

          3  a fair hearing, well reasoned, well thought out, and

          4  I don't win all the cases. I lose more than half of

          5  the cases. And, frankly, in many of the cases where

          6  a violation is written, that violation is well

          7  deserved, and the contractor should pay the penalty.

          8  And they do.

          9                 My concern is with the

         10  criminalization, and I'm not arguing against

         11  criminalization, I'm not arguing against the

         12  criminal penalty per se, what I am arguing is that

         13  if there going to be a criminal penalty, it should

         14  perhaps be decided in a court, and scienter or

         15  knowledge should be an element of the offense.

         16                 I have a problem with an offense

         17  that's charged against the contractor who had no way

         18  of knowing he was violating the law. If there is

         19  scienter, if a contractor knows he is violating the

         20  law, the contractor is guilty.

         21                 I have no problem with stop work

         22  orders. When they are issued, usually there is a

         23  reason for them. But if you're going to criminalize

         24  the violation, my point is it's got to be a knowing

         25  violation. I'm not certain, and I haven't researched
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          2  this point, but I'm not certain that under the City

          3  Charter the ECB has the right to impose, to find

          4  people guilty of a misdemeanor. I'm not sure about

          5  that. I haven't done the research. It's something

          6  that should be considered. I think the enforcement,

          7  how you enforce it is very important.

          8                 There is no argument from me on the

          9  law and the need to enforce the law. We're talking

         10  about the mechanics.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Council Member

         12  Gentile.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         14  Mr. Chairman. And Mr. McGuire, thank you for your

         15  input on 216-A and I think we will make the changes

         16  that you and DOB have constructively recommended to

         17  us.

         18                 Mr. Echtman, I'm curious. You say in

         19  your testimony that under the current rules posting

         20  NOVs on a fence and mailing a copy to the contractor

         21  is deemed sufficient service. So, am I to assume,

         22  because I don't know this area of law, that there is

         23  a process service, there are process service rules

         24  involved here?

         25                 MR. ECHTMAN: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So there are

          3  rules?

          4                 MR. ECHTMAN: Yes. The rules provide

          5  that posting it on a fence and mailing is sufficient

          6  service.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But when a

          8  contractor goes in, they do have a defense then?

          9  You're saying that there is no notice, and in this

         10  case you don't say what happened here -- oh, he was

         11  found guilty and fined at ECB. That's what you're

         12  saying here?

         13                 MR. ECHTMAN: Yes. I'm saying that if

         14  you're going to talk about a criminal issue, a

         15  criminal penalty, in that case posting on a fence

         16  and mailing is not sufficient service. That's my

         17  opinion, as a lawyer practicing in this area for

         18  over 30 years.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So you would

         20  want to see an affirmative defense that they were

         21  not notified? Is that --

         22                 MR. ECHTMAN: I would want to see

         23  actual notification. I would want to see service,

         24  actual service of the notice of violation on the

         25  contractor.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: As you call

          3  it, the scienter?

          4                 MR. ECHTMAN: That puts them on

          5  notice. Once he's actually been served, he is on

          6  notice. Now if he violated the law if he works,

          7  there is a element of scienter you've proven.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And as it

          9  stands now, you're saying when they go in to dispute

         10  the violation of the stop work order, they claim

         11  that they have had no notice, that is not a valid

         12  defense so-to-speak in a court?

         13                 MR. ECHTMAN: At the ECB it sometimes

         14  is, it sometimes is not.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: And what do

         16  you mean by that? It depends on the judge?

         17                 MR. ECHTMAN: It depends on the judge.

         18  It depends entirely on the judge.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Because it's

         20  not written into the law? You just said that weren't

         21  procedural safeguards written into the law.

         22                 MR. ECHTMAN: There are procedural

         23  safeguards, such as posting on a fence. Now, posting

         24  on a fence is not adequate, in my opinion is not

         25  adequate notice.
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          2                 Who has control of that fence? It's

          3  out in the street. Anybody can take a piece of paper

          4  off the fence and throw it away. There is no

          5  assurance, there is not even a likelihood.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: But it's nail

          7  and mail, right? You're nailing to the fence and

          8  mail it, right?

          9                 MR. ECHTMAN: And mail it.

         10                 And that is good service in the civil

         11  suit, but it's not good service in the criminal

         12  procedure.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So your point

         14  is on the criminal side, not on the civil side?

         15                 MR. ECHTMAN: Exactly.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I see. Okay.

         17  I see your point then.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you.

         20                 We'll go to Council Member Comrie,

         21  and he'll be the final member to question this

         22  panel, then we'll move to adjourn.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Actually, I

         24  don't have any questions for the panel. I jus wanted

         25  to thank Michael McGuire for his continued focus on
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          2  trying to get the other bills passed, 329, 330, that

          3  I think would encompass this particular situation.

          4  And I appreciate the Chair's comments also in seeing

          5  that these bills do come to an opportunity to be

          6  passed. So, I wanted to thank Michael for his

          7  continued focus and diligence on that matter, that I

          8  think would resolve these particular issues.

          9                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DILAN: Thank you, Council

         11  Member Comrie. And I would like to thank the panel.

         12  We certainly want to move in the interest of

         13  protecting our constituents from the most negligent

         14  people in the demolition business, and I certainly

         15  believe this Committee intends to do so. So, I'd

         16  like to thank you for coming in. We are going to

         17  move to adjourn, but before I adjourn, all bills on

         18  today's calendar will be laid over and we will get

         19  back to these at a future date.

         20                 So, with that I want to thank

         21  everyone for coming. This hearing is closed.

         22                 (Hearing concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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